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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good morning.

          3  I'm Council Member Jim Gennaro, Chair of the New

          4  York City Council Committee on Environmental

          5  Protection.  I would like to welcome you to this

          6  hearing.

          7                 Today, the Committee will hear

          8  testimony on three important topics.  Intro. No.

          9  744, which makes technical changes to legislation

         10  this Council passed earlier this year, pertaining to

         11  the City's purchase of low emitting and more fuel-

         12  efficient motor vehicles.

         13                 Sergeant, the lights are kind of hot.

         14    Any way we can tone these down a little bit?  I'm

         15  taking my jacket off.

         16                 So that's Intro. 744.

         17                 The next topic is an oversight on New

         18  York State wetlands.  Implications for New York

         19  City, and a related resolution, Reso. 1078, which

         20  calls upon New York State Legislature to

         21  expeditiously enact the Clean Water Protection/Flood

         22  Protection Act, that will strengthen  --  that's

         23  good.  --  That would strengthen protection of

         24  wetlands in New York State.  Passage of this measure

         25  will safeguard and enhance New York City's water
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          2  supply quality, pollution treatment, flood control,

          3  open space, and natural areas.  We have many people

          4  here to testify on this part of the hearing, and I

          5  thank them very much for coming.

          6                 Resolution 1265, which calls upon the

          7  appropriate federal and state  --  this is the next

          8  topic  --  Resolution 1265, which calls upon the

          9  appropriate federal and state agencies, and the

         10  public, to provide all natural gas supply projects,

         11  including the proposed Broadwater Energy Project, a

         12  fair and full review. This call reflects the

         13  important role that natural gas is projected to play

         14  in the reliability of energy resources, increasing

         15  diversity of supply sources, reducing energy price

         16  volatility, and protecting environmental and public

         17  health in New York City.

         18                 Now, to go back in a little more

         19  detail about these various items, Intro. 744, the

         20  first matter before this Committee today.  Intro.

         21  744 relates to technical amendments to Section 24

         22  163.1 of the Administrative Code.  Intro. Number 744

         23  contains technical amendments which clarify the fuel

         24  economy requirements that pertain to Fiscal Years

         25  20012, 2014, and 2015, as well as section 24-
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          2  163.1's applicability to diesel vehicles 8,500

          3  pounds and below, that are not required to be

          4  retrofitted pursuant to Section 24- 163.4 of the

          5  Administrative Code.

          6                 The next topic, the wetlands

          7  oversight, the second matter before the Committee,

          8  is the oversight element in regards to New York

          9  State wetlands protection, and its implications for

         10  New York City, and Resolution 1078.

         11                 The EPA has noted that New York State

         12  has lost an estimated 60 percent of its historic

         13  wetlands.  And in the City of New York, the New

         14  York/New Jersey Harbor Estuary Program estimates

         15  that there are now only approximately 14 square

         16  miles of wetlands still in existence, where there

         17  were once more than 100 square miles, a wetlands

         18  loss of over 85 percent.

         19                 Changes in federal policy have

         20  resulted in so- called "isolated wetlands", no

         21  longer being provided federal protection.

         22  Consequently, the 12.4 wetlands protection threshold

         23  in current state law, coupled with the loss of

         24  federal protection for many smaller wetlands, has

         25  created a regulatory gap, leaving an estimated tens
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          2  of thousands of wetlands in New York without any

          3  regulatory protection.  New York is the only state

          4  in the Northeast that uses wetland size as threshold

          5  criteria for wetland regulation.

          6                 Resolution 1078 calls upon the New

          7  York State Legislature to expeditiously enact the

          8  Clean Water Protection/Flood Prevention Act.  This

          9  legislation would, among other things, strengthen

         10  protection of wetlands in New York State by

         11  protecting smaller wetland areas.  This measure

         12  would have significant benefits for New York City by

         13  enhancing our water supply quality, pollution

         14  treatment, flood control, open space, and natural

         15  areas.              Lastly, the Committee will have

         16  testimony today on Resolution 1265, to ensure

         17  reliability to promote economic growth, and to

         18  address environmental issues.   The Mayor's Energy

         19  Policy Task Force projects a need for an additional

         20  2,600 megawatts of new resources by 2008.

         21                 New York State currently pays some of

         22  the highest energy prices in the Continental United

         23  States, and can pay five to six times more for

         24  natural gas than the base price during peak periods.

         25    As such high prices for fuel used to generate
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          2  electricity, which affect the cost of electricity,

          3  directly and adversely impact property owners,

          4  particularly home owners and businesses in New York

          5  City, and threatens economic sustainability and

          6  growth in the City.

          7                 The New York City metropolitan region

          8  depends upon natural gas as a primary or secondary

          9  fuel for much of its power generation needs.

         10  Unfortunately, the New York City metropolitan region

         11  is located at the end of the natural gas pipeline

         12  infrastructure, and does not have sufficient local

         13  production or storage capacity for natural gas.

         14                 While much can and must be done to

         15  promote the efficient use of electricity and natural

         16  gas to address the region's energy- related

         17  reliability, diversity, cost and environmental

         18  concerns, additional investments in natural gas

         19  supplies in New York City are also acknowledged by

         20  many, including the Mayor's Energy Policy Task

         21  Force, as a critical need.

         22                 The Broadwater Energy Project is

         23  proposed as a floating, liquid natural gas storage

         24  and regasification facility to be located in Long

         25  Island Sound.  This project would provide for much
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          2  needed storage capacity, and new supplies to New

          3  York City through connections with the Iroquois Gas

          4  transmission System.

          5                 Natural gas is projected to play an

          6  important future role in enhancing the reliability

          7  of energy resources, increasing diversity of the

          8  supply sources, reducing energy price volatility,

          9  and protecting environmental and public health in

         10  New York City. This is why all natural gas projects,

         11  including the proposed Broadwater Energy Project,

         12  deserve a full and fair review by appropriate

         13  federal and state agencies, and the public.

         14                 I think that's the longest opening

         15  statement I have ever made.  Is everyone still with

         16  us here?  Okay.  Good.  Good.

         17                 So I would like to thank the staff of

         18  the Committee for putting this hearing together,

         19  particularly Richard Colon, and Donna De Constano.

         20  We are also joined by Veronica McNeil, of our

         21  Finance Staff.  We're joined by Council Member

         22  Arroyo, from the Bronx.  I know Council Member

         23  Koppell, who has a hearing right next door, was in

         24  the room briefly, and we'll be joined by other

         25  Members as the hearing goes on.
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          2                 For our first witness, from the

          3  Department of Environmental Protection, Michael

          4  Gilsenan, am I saying that right? Okay.

          5                 MR. GILSENAN: That's correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Terrific.  Well,

          7  Mr. Gilsenan, thanks for being here today.  It's my

          8  understanding that you're going to provide a

          9  statement on Intro. 744.  We want to thank you and

         10  DEP for all of the work that went in to the bills

         11  that we did earlier this year regarding alternative

         12  fuel.  It was a great step forward for the City, and

         13  it built upon our already landmark 1991 law, so we

         14  thank DEP for all that, and for their cooperation in

         15  doing this technical change to that law  And so,  I

         16  thank you for being here today.  Thank you for your

         17  patience, and I ask you to state your name for the

         18  record, and provide your statement.

         19                 MR. GILSENAN: Michael Gilsenan,

         20  Assistant Commissioner of New York City's Department

         21  of Environmental Protection.

         22                 Good morning Mr. Chairman, and

         23  Committee Members. I am Michael Gilsenan, Assistant

         24  Commissioner for the Bureau of Environmental

         25  Compliance at the Department of Environmental
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          2  Protection.  On behalf of the Administration, thank

          3  you for the opportunity to testify on Intro. 744.

          4                 Intro. 744 clarifies and strengthens

          5  Local Law 38, which was signed into law by Mayor

          6  Bloomberg on May 9, 2005,  by providing the missing

          7  dates for when the City is to achieve certain

          8  percentage increases in the fuel economy of all new

          9  vehicles purchased over the next ten years.

         10                 Intro. 744 inserts Fiscal Year 2011

         11  to reflect the City's mandate to achieve a 15

         12  percent increase in fuel economy by said date.  And

         13  similarly, the years 2013 and 2014 were added to

         14  reflect the City's requirement to achieve an 18

         15  percent increase in fuel economy by said date.

         16                 New York City has long been

         17  recognized as a national leader in the acquisition

         18  of low- emission vehicles and the use of alternative

         19  fuel and emission control technologies.  This

         20  Administration has worked collaboratively with the

         21  Council to have a law that improves the air we

         22  breathe.

         23                 We look forward to the implementation

         24  of this law.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.
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          2  Thank you.  I just have one comment that I'd like to

          3  make.  I'd like to make it intelligently, so I just

          4  have to confer with Counsel for a minute so I can

          5  make it intelligently.

          6                 Okay.  It's also my understanding

          7  that Intro. 744 clarifies the applicability to

          8  diesel vehicles 8,500 pounds and below, that are not

          9  required to be retrofitted pursuant to Section 24-

         10  163.4 of the Administrative Code.  Is that your

         11  understanding that that's what it does as well?

         12                 MR. GILSENAN:  That's our

         13  understanding.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.  No, it

         15  just wasn't included in your statement, so I just

         16  wanted to make sure that from DEP's perspective, it

         17  did that as well.

         18                 MR. GILSENAN: That's correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.  Terrific.

         20                 Okay.  Mr. Gilsenan, we thank you for

         21  coming down here today, and relatively painless

         22  outing before us.  You know that we know you're

         23  doing a lot of work with respect to the noise code,

         24  and Deputy Commissioner Avaltroni indicated that he

         25  wanted you back at Liffrak as soon as possible to
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          2  keep that good work going.  And so, thank you for

          3  being here, and thank you for providing the

          4  statement, and we look forward to passing this by

          5  the end of the year.

          6                 MR. GILSENAN: Thank you Mr. Chairman.

          7    It's always a pleasure to be in front of your

          8  Committee.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         10  Thank you.

         11                 Okay.  Because of the number of

         12  people who want to testify during the next section

         13  of the hearing, we're going to  -- ordinarily, in

         14  these kinds of circumstances, we take out the three

         15  minute clock.  I'm going to use my prerogative to

         16  push it to four minutes, because people came all

         17  this way, they had to listen to my long opening

         18  statement, the hearing started late.  The least I

         19  could do is give you another minute.  Maybe after

         20  your four- minute statement, I'll engage you in

         21  questions to make it go a little bit longer.  How's

         22  that?  Is that good?  Okay.

         23                 And so, it's my understanding that

         24  Billy Garrett is not in the room yet.  Okay, we have

         25  sort of an order of witnesses. First it was going to
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          2  be Billy Garrett.  Billy's not here yet.  So next on

          3  the list would be Brad Sewell, of NRDC.

          4                 Oh, okay, sorry, the panel would be

          5  Brad Sewell, Jake Kritzer (phonetic), who I

          6  understand is not here either, from Environmental

          7  Defense.  Is anyone here from Environmental Defense

          8  that wants to sit in on this panel, that would be

          9  fine.  Leila Goldmark, from Riverkeeper.  And

         10  Cathleen Breen, from NYPIRG.  That would be the

         11  first panel.  It would be Brad, a person from

         12  Environmental Defense if not Jake, Leila, and

         13  Cathleen Breen.

         14                 We can hit it with a hammer.  Would

         15  that help? Would it do anything?  We'll just start

         16  as we're waiting for the technical person to  --

         17  yes  --  And so, Brad, okay.  You were first on the

         18  list.  Do you have a statement, Brad?

         19                 MR. SEWELL: I do.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.  Where is

         21  it?  Okay. Just give me a copy of Brad's statement

         22  so we can start.  Maria, do you have one?   Maria,

         23  do you have NRDC?  Okay.  Brad.  Sorry.

         24                 MR. SEWELL: Well, thank you Council

         25  Member Gennaro, and Council Member Arroyo, and the
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          2  full Committee, and the Council as a whole, for

          3  inviting us here and providing us with the

          4  opportunity to testify in favor of Resolution number

          5  1078, and generally, on the subject of wetlands

          6  protection in New York State, and the implications

          7  of such protection for New York City.

          8                 As I said, we're here in support, in

          9  strong support, of Resolution number 1078, which

         10  calls upon the New York State Legislature to move

         11  ahead after several attempts over the last couple of

         12  years, to enact the Clean Water Protection and the

         13  Flood Prevention Act.  And the current session,

         14  that's S2081 and A2048.

         15                 In this legislation, it would

         16  significantly reform the State's current wetland

         17  protection laws, including by closing a regulatory

         18  loophole that's been opened at the federal level,

         19  that's allowing many of New York State's wetlands to

         20  be affected detrimentally, either entirely

         21  destroyed, or otherwise affected, and thus, harming

         22  New York City, in particular, threatening its water

         23  supplies in addition to the recreational lands used

         24  by many New York City residents.

         25                 And as the Committee is well aware,
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          2  wetlands are nature's sponge, in that they absorb

          3  flood waters.  And then they also serve both as a

          4  sponge and a kidney, in that they also have

          5  cleansing property.  And this filtering capacity of

          6  wetlands is particularly important for New York

          7  City, because protection of the wetlands in the

          8  City's watershed is essential to providing a

          9  healthy, safe, clean drinking water supply to New

         10  York City on an ongoing basis.

         11                 We've got 19 reservoirs in the

         12  watershed.  They currently provide incredibly clean,

         13  pure, wonderful water to New York City's residents.

         14  Unfiltered, and we would like to keep it that way.

         15  Continued protection of New York State's wetlands

         16  are essential to that goal.

         17                 And finally, as Council Member, you

         18  noted in your opening statements. Wetlands are

         19  absolutely vital to protection and survival of the

         20  State's, and in fact, of the State's wildlife in New

         21  York State, because of its location, protection of

         22  New York State's wetlands are essential for

         23  continued survival of North America's wildlife,

         24  including its birds that use the State as a

         25  migratory pathway.
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          2                 Now, despite the tremendous public

          3  benefits, as I've just summarized, wetlands in New

          4  York State are under a particular threat, and are

          5  under particular threat because of this regulatory

          6  loophole, which I noted up top.  This regulatory

          7  loophole was opened up around 2001, as a result of

          8  an interpretation put on a U.S. Supreme Court

          9  decision, by the federal agencies that implement the

         10  Clean Water Act.  As a result of this federal

         11  loophole, there have been hundreds of wetlands in

         12  New York State that have gotten so- called "non-

         13  jurisdictional" determination, which means, they are

         14  now available for development, i.e., destruction,

         15  and were not so available for destruction prior to

         16  2001.

         17                 We did, NRDC did a survey of these

         18  non jurisdictional determinations, made by the two

         19  Corps Engineer's offices in New York State, the New

         20  York District Office, located in the City, and then

         21  the Buffalo District Office, located in Buffalo, and

         22  found anywhere from 25 to 50 percent of the wetlands

         23  that were considered for coverage by the federal

         24  law, were -- I'll just finish this comment.  Were

         25  not provided federal protection as a result of this
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          2  loophole.

          3                 So, this law that we call upon the

          4  New York Legislation, hopefully, the Council will

          5  call upon the New York Legislation to enact, would

          6  close that loophole, by having the New York State

          7  law step into the gap, which currently doesn't cover

          8  that gap, and close the regulatory loophole and

          9  thus, protect our natural heritage for generations

         10  to come.

         11                 Thank you again for the opportunity

         12  to testify.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         14  Thank you Brad. Just sit tight until we finish with

         15  the panel, and then, if I have questions or

         16  comments, I'll do them for everybody.

         17                 Who's the next?  Okay.  Leila, right?

         18    Okay.  Just state your name for the record, and

         19  begin your testimony.

         20                 MS. GOLDMARK: My name is Leila

         21  Goldmark.  I'm Attorney for Riverkeeper, and I thank

         22  the Committee for inviting us to provide testimony

         23  today.

         24                 As the signatory to the 1997 City

         25  Watershed Memorandum of Agreement, Riverkeeper
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          2  routinely comments on issues affecting the New York

          3  City drinking water supply watershed.  We fully

          4  support adoption of Res. 2078, and believe the

          5  passage of the Clean Water Protection/Flood

          6  Prevention Act by the State Legislature will be of

          7  great benefit to the protection of wetlands, and

          8  thus, water quality throughout the New York City

          9  watershed.

         10                 As you know, following the 2001

         11  Supreme Court decision in Solid Waste Agency of

         12  Northern Cook County v. United States, federal

         13  agencies stopped enforcing Clean Water Act

         14  protections for so- called "isolated" waters, which

         15  are intrastate, intermittent waters, and wetlands

         16  that lack significant nexus to waters of the United

         17  States.  Exactly what constitutes a significant

         18  nexus remains unclear.  While all but the 5th

         19  Circuit courts continue to interpret SWANCC

         20  narrowly, current U.S. EPA and Army Corps policy

         21  guidance takes a broad view, and unjustly limits

         22  federal agency jurisdiction over countless wetlands

         23  across the country.  Two recent reports by the U.S.

         24  General Accounting office document ACOE's lack of

         25  uniform, or publicly available criteria for
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          2  determining wetland jurisdiction, and further

          3  criticize ACOE's lack of documentation of rationales

          4  when non- jurisdictional determinations are made.

          5                 Federal rollbacks have caused a

          6  particular crisis in New York, as these smaller

          7  wetlands are not protected under State laws.  Brad

          8  mentioned.  Currently, the New York Freshwater

          9  Wetlands Act protects only wetlands that are 12.4

         10  acres or larger, or deemed to be of unusual local

         11  importance, and that appear on the official State

         12  wetland maps.  In September, the Environmental

         13  Integrity Project reported that New York is among

         14  the top 15 states for wetland losses post SWANCC.

         15  In addition, the State Attorney General's office

         16  recently reviewed all wetland permit decisions

         17  available post SWANCC, that covers the New York

         18  District from 2002 to '04, and the Buffalo District

         19  from '01 to '04.  According to Lemeul Srolovic, the

         20  Section Chief for the Environmental Protection

         21  Bureau, in a lecture presented at a conference in

         22  Albuquerque in October, fully 45 percent of the

         23  applications received were found to be non-

         24  jurisdictional by ACOE.  Of those, only one

         25  application was found to qualify for regulation
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          2  under State law.

          3                 Few wetlands remain in the New York

          4  City watershed. According to a 1999 report, by

          5  Watershed Inspector General Jim Tierney, in the 571

          6  square mile Catskill Watershed, there are 3,872

          7  acres of wetlands, which is only 1.06 percent of the

          8  surface area. In the 1,013 square mile Delaware

          9  Watershed, only .81 percent is wetlands.  And the

         10  387 square mile East- of- Hudson Watershed, only 6.4

         11  percent of the watershed is wetland areas.  These

         12  figures are somewhat out of date, but undoubtedly,

         13  wetland losses have continued in the subsequent

         14  years.  It's critical that the few remaining

         15  wetlands be protected and preserved.

         16                 Local governments must now shoulder

         17  the sole burden of protecting these valuable

         18  wetlands, in order to protect drinking water

         19  supplies and protect residents from flooding.  This

         20  should be of particular concern to New York City,

         21  which must now rely largely on local municipalities

         22  to protect wetlands throughout the City's drinking

         23  water supply watershed.

         24                 The majority, if not all, of East-

         25  of- Hudson municipalities, which are under intense
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          2  development pressure, already have local ordinances

          3  that protect these wetlands down to one acre, often

          4  less.  The picture in the Catskill/Delaware

          5  Watershed is less promising.  Many municipalities

          6  don't have local wetland ordinances and continue to

          7  rely on questionable federal and State protection.

          8                 The Clean Water Protection/Flood

          9  Prevention Act will allow the State to step in and

         10  fill the existing regulatory gaps, by among other

         11  things, lowering the outdated and unscientific

         12  threshold from 12.4 to one acre.  As the Resolution

         13  points out, wetlands provide  critical functions

         14  that will safeguard and enhance the quality of New

         15  York City's drinking water supply, and system

         16  infrastructure.  Functions such as pollution

         17  treatment and filtration, ground and surface water

         18  recharge, and flood prevention.

         19                 I'm out of time.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.  And so,

         21  I'll come back to you on a question, perhaps.  But I

         22  read through the statement, and we'll just move on

         23  to our next witness.  Thank you.  Thank you.

         24                 MS. GOLDMARK: Thank you for having

         25  us.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Cathleen.  Thank

          3  you.  Good morning.  Let me get your statement,

          4  Cathleen.

          5                 MS. BREEN: Sure.  My name is Cathleen

          6  Breen, and I'm the Watershed's Protection

          7  Coordinator for the New York Public Interest

          8  Research Group NYPIRG.  Thank you for the

          9  opportunity to comment today on Resolution 1078,

         10  calling upon the New York State Legislature to

         11  expeditiously enact Clean Water Protection/Flood

         12  Prevention Act.

         13                 NYPIRG is New York State's largest

         14  research and advocacy non- profit organization,

         15  primarily focused on environmental preservation,

         16  consumer protection, government reforms, and public

         17  health issues.  We, like Riverkeeper, are one of the

         18  five environmental organizations that are

         19  signatories to the 1997 Watershed Memorandum of

         20  Agreement, which laid out the groundwork for the

         21  City, State, and local watershed communities to

         22  protect our invaluable drinking water supplies.  A

         23  remarkable system, that supplies approximately 1.3

         24  billion gallons of clean drinking water daily, for

         25  more than 9 million New Yorkers.
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          2                 In the New York City watershed,

          3  wetlands are in part, responsible for maintaining

          4  the high quality of surface waters.  They play an

          5  important role in maintaining water quality,

          6  providing wildlife habitats, recharging ground

          7  water, controlling erosion, protecting against

          8  floods, and filtering nutrients.  But despite their

          9  importance, wetlands are regularly drained, filled

         10  to make way for houses and buildings, highways,

         11  roadways, and many of the remaining wetlands are

         12  impaired and function poorly, due to the affect of

         13  fertilizers, pesticides. And runoff.

         14                 The loss of federal protections

         15  resulting from the U.S. Supreme Court's 2001

         16  decision, left wetland areas ranging from 1 to 12.4

         17  acres without any oversight.  Certainly, the New

         18  York State legislature must take the lead on

         19  protecting the over 270,000 wetland areas around the

         20  State.  The Clean Water Protection and Flood

         21  Prevention Act would give the Department of

         22  Environmental Conservation the regulatory authority

         23  necessary to protect New York's wetlands by

         24  eliminating the map requirement and reducing the

         25  size limitations on DEC's regulatory authority.
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          2                 Even though these complex ecosystems

          3  are among some of our nations' most valuable

          4  resources, wetlands continue to be disregarded.  In

          5  New York, the Clean Water Protection/Flood

          6  Prevention Act passed in the Assembly, and passed

          7  the Senate Environmental Conservation Committee, but

          8  has stalled in the Senate.

          9                 We fully support the New York City

         10  Council Resolution 1078, which urges the New York

         11  State Legislature to enact important legislation

         12  that would strengthen and improve New York's

         13  freshwater wetland protection law.

         14                 And we thank the City Council for its

         15  commitment to protecting wetlands.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         17  Thank you all.

         18                 I have to confess that I wasn't even

         19  aware that this bill passed the  --  I knew it was

         20  stalled in the Senate, but I didn't know it had

         21  passed the Environmental Conservation Committee of

         22  the State Senate.  That's  --  I was not aware of

         23  that.

         24                 I think, one way that we can make our

         25  resolution a little stronger is to make prominent
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          2  mention of that fact.  So I want to direct staff to

          3  add that "whereas" clause to the resolution that

          4  makes reference to the fact that it was passed by

          5  the appropriate  --  it is in there, see.  That's

          6  good fast, staff work.  It's done already.  There

          7  you go.

          8                 It passed the Committee twice.  Can

          9  you imagine?   Can you imagine?  Okay.  I wasn't

         10  aware of that.

         11                 Leila, you referenced the

         12  Environmental Integrity Project.  What is the

         13  Environmental Integrity Project?  You made reference

         14  to the fact that they reported that New York State

         15  is among the top 15 state that have wetland losses.

         16  I was just not familiar with who they are or what

         17  they are.

         18                 MS. GOLDMARK: They're another DC-

         19  based nonprofit. I believe Eric Shaeffer was at EPA,

         20  when he left several years ago, he started at this

         21  group.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.  Okay.

         23                 I think in the resolution, we should

         24  make reference to the Environmental Integrity

         25  Project.  I think that bolsters our case as well.
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          2                 And I guess this is a question for

          3  anyone.  Does anyone have any sense of DEC, and

          4  where they are on this, or do they believe that  --

          5  Any comments by DEC?  They were invited to come here

          6  today, but they didn't come.  I'm not asking anyone

          7  certainly, to testify for DEC, but to the extent

          8  that anyone has any inkling on where DEC may be on

          9  this issue.

         10                 MS. GOLDMARK: I know that in

         11  conversation with Tom Snows, Director of the New

         12  York City Watershed Program for DEC, that he had

         13  expressed interest in having coverage to one acre,

         14  especially in the New York City watershed, where

         15  it's so critical.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. Sometimes

         17  you just wonder, anytime maybe it needs more

         18  jurisdiction, of course, they have to then cover it

         19  until that need and it's nice to hear that there's

         20  some receptivity on the part of DEC to taking on

         21  this new mandate should it be created by law.  Brad?

         22                 MR. SEWELL: I guess one additional

         23  note.  It really should be noted.  Governor Pataki

         24  has proposed in prior years, as part of the budget

         25  process, an amendment which would address this issue

                                                            28

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  in a different manner, but still, would address this

          3  regulatory loophole.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What did he do?

          5  What did he do?

          6                 MR. SEWELL: It was an amendment  --

          7  it would be as part of the budget, not exactly sure

          8  what shape it's going to take this year, it's going

          9  to take the same shape, you want to describe it?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What is it?

         11  What did he do?

         12                 MS. GOLDMARK: He takes,

         13  philosophically, a little different approach.  He

         14  doesn't want to lower the threshold across the

         15  board.  He wants to create an amendment that would

         16  capture this isolated wetland definition that's been

         17  lost federally.  In addition, he would impose

         18  wetland fees.  Or reinstitute fees for applications.

         19    And that's to pay for the additional regulation.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh.  So what

         21  kind of regulatory paradigm is he proposing?  Like,

         22  would DEC have jurisdiction of these wetlands?  I

         23  don't understand.

         24                 MS. GOLDMARK: From our perspective, I

         25  think it's a little more confusing legally speaking,
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          2  because it continues to use this term "isolated"

          3  which I think is what a lot of people object to.

          4  It's not really a scientific definition.  And it

          5  would be hard to know when the State would pick

          6  something up.  It's only when the Army Corps didn't,

          7  so we would favor  --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.  The

          9  outright lowering of the threshold.

         10                 MS. GOLDMARK: They don't want to

         11  create a new regulation, which we don't see this as

         12  being, but there's some difference of opinion.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.  Okay.

         14  Thank you. Thank you all very much.  We appreciate

         15  your testimony, and thank you for being here.

         16                 We have the next panel.  Alexander

         17  Brash, National Parks Conservation Association, Dr.

         18  Paul Mankiewicz, of the Gaia Institute, and Jeannie

         19  Flatow, and Ellen Hartig, of Great Eastern Ecology.

         20                 Oh, okay, okay.  I'll mention that.

         21  I have the National Parks Conservation Association

         22  statement.  There's more statements coming?

         23                 We can start with Mr. Brash.  And

         24  again, sorry for the four- minute limit.  And I

         25  guess to all witnesses in this panel, and subsequent
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          2  panels, I guess to the extent that people can get to

          3  the meat, and real substance of their statements.

          4  Certainly, like you'd want to get that in within

          5  four minutes.  So, thank you all for being here, I

          6  appreciate your good testimony.  We'll start with

          7  Mr. Brash.  Just state your name for the record, and

          8  proceed with your testimony.

          9                 MR. BRASH: Thank you Council Member

         10  Gennaro, and Arroyo for inviting us here to talk

         11  today.

         12                 My name is Alexander Brash.  I am the

         13  EPA's Harbor Estuary Habitat Committee Chair.  As

         14  well as the Regional Director of the National Parks

         15  Conservation Association, America's only private,

         16  non- profit organization supporting and protecting,

         17  and enhancing the national parks.

         18                 As you know, around New York City, of

         19  course, there are roughly 12 national parks,

         20  including the dilapidated Hamilton Grange in Upper

         21  Manhattan, as well as the entire Gateway system,

         22  which includes beautiful parks out on Great Kills in

         23  Staten Island, Fort Tildon and Riis Beach on

         24  Rockaway, and both Floyd Bennet Field and Jamaica

         25  Bay Wildlife Refuge.
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          2                 It is our concern, in particular, for

          3  this latter site that brings us here today.  And as

          4  has been discussed, but to be clear, the recent

          5  court case that pulled back the federal protections

          6  from all wetlands that are not connected to

          7  navigable waters, and hence, therefore, dropped the,

          8  if you will, the threshold of regulation from a

          9  smaller level up to one hectare.  New York State is

         10  unique, is the one state in the New England region

         11  that has such a high threshold.  And small,

         12  apparently unconnected wetlands are, in fact,

         13  ecologically very networked with our streams and

         14  rivers.

         15                 And for New Yorkers, probably the

         16  most important point of this is that New Yorkers

         17  should care principally because so much of our

         18  drinking water comes out of the Catskill system. And

         19  so, having regulated freshwater wetlands in that

         20  region is critical.  But, it also is equally

         21  important for those wetlands within New York City

         22  boundaries themselves.  And there are wonderful, and

         23  beautiful isolated wetlands still in Brooklyn,

         24  Queens, the Bronx, and Staten Island, in particular.

         25
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          2                 Why should we care?  I think that's

          3  been largely discussed.  But, both estuarine, or

          4  salt wetlands as well as freshwater wetlands do do a

          5  couple of critical things.  They filter out the

          6  pollution, cleaning our waters of sediment,

          7  nutrients, chemical contaminants, bacteria.  Most

          8  importantly, they absorb flood waters, a lesson that

          9  I think, has been brought clear to this nation

         10  during this past Summer.  And they also provide a

         11  home to a myriad of plants and animals that comprise

         12  our region's estuine ecology.

         13                 Therefore, we urge you to send the

         14  petition up to New York State Legislators to pass

         15  the Clean Water Protection/Flood Prevention Act,

         16  S.2081 and 2048.  And in doing so, we'll close a

         17  loophole.

         18                 But in conjunction with this, I would

         19  also look to you, and suggest you look at four other

         20  additional projects that I think this Committee

         21  would find very near and dear.  And they are: One,

         22  send a resolution to the City's Congressional

         23  delegation making clear the City's support for the

         24  Jamaica Bay Restoration Project the Army Corps of

         25  Engineers now identified, which would help rebuild
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          2  at least eight sites surrounding Jamaica Bay.

          3                 Continue to fast track your committee

          4  that has been under consideration years, and move

          5  ahead with the Council's Task Force to examine the

          6  City- owned, the remaining City- owned wetlands that

          7  have been identified by Buffer the Bay and HEP, so

          8  they may be transferred to the New York City Parks

          9  Department for their protection, including the EDC

         10  tract along Thurston Basin; Spring Creek held by

         11  Sanitation; Paerdegat Basin; and Coney Island Creek.

         12                 Three, until this task is completed,

         13  ask the Mayor and EDC to enact a moratorium on

         14  clearing and selling or transferring any more City-

         15  owned land that is larger than an acre, and has more

         16  than 20 years growth.

         17                 And four, and finally, in keeping

         18  with this Committee's concerns for wetlands, I would

         19  ask you to continue to seek the completion of

         20  Oakland Ravine, promised by both New York City DEP

         21  and the Parks Department to the people of Bayside

         22  and Queens for enduring and thanking them for their

         23  forbearance but enduring the storm water drainage

         24  program.  This project has been way laid for years.

         25  And in finishing this project, it would restore one
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          2  of the City's last streams, and serve as a

          3  centerpiece for ecological engineering in an urban

          4  environment.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you Mr.

          7  Brash.  I'll come back to make comments on some of

          8  your statement.

          9                 We're going to hear from Paul

         10  Mankiewicz, but I'd like to recognize the presence

         11  of Council Member Vallone, from Queens, a valued

         12  member of this Committee.  Thank you.  Paul.

         13                 MR. MANKIEWICZ: Paul Mankiewicz, from

         14  the Gaia Institute, as well as New York City Soil

         15  and Water Conservation District.  And I thank you

         16  Council Member, and Council Members who join us here

         17  today.

         18                 I'll be extremely simple here.  The

         19  problem with this 12.4 acres is a huge one.  The

         20  issue is not how large the wetland is, the issue is

         21  whether it's hydrological connected to the water

         22  supply and to the estuary that we all surround.  And

         23  that is NDEC's framework, and that should be,

         24  perhaps, a strong component of all wetland

         25  protection.
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          2                 The small wetlands, a little known

          3  fact, it should be known by everyone, is that the

          4  smaller wetlands have a much large edge- to- area

          5  ratio.  That is, they have better connection with

          6  oxidized soils.  The reason you want that, is that

          7  wetlands can remove maybe a gram of phosphorous per

          8  square meter per year. And an oxidized soil can

          9  maybe do 20 times that.  On the nitrogen side,

         10  wetlands are about 10 times as good.  So what you

         11  want, is the watershed system of soils and wetlands

         12  conserved as a whole, because both of them are

         13  directly hydrological connected to the water supply

         14  that keeps all of us alive and the rich bio-

         15  diversity of New York State.

         16                 I will stop there and let you have

         17  more lunch time, but basically, that's the take-

         18  home message.  Hydrological connection, and the

         19  power of small systems, exactly because they're more

         20  connected to a larger framework of bio- geochemical

         21  water filtration altogether.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         23  Thank you Paul, I appreciate that.

         24                 We're also joined by Council Member

         25  Gallagher, from Queens. Jeannie.
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          2                 MS. FLATOW: You just heard from Paul,

          3  which is my contact why this is so critically

          4  important.  But also, the many, many years that

          5  we've fought DEC, who didn't want the law changed. I

          6  think the most important thing I can say is, that

          7  everyone in this room should find a way that we make

          8  it clear that we're all in favor of this taking

          9  place.  I'm not sure whether we have somebody

         10  besides the head of the Senate blocking us.  The

         11  Governor may or may not be with us, but the fact of

         12  the matter is, if both environmental committees, in

         13  both the Senate and the Assembly started this, and

         14  put it together, I think it behooves us to let them

         15  know how many people in the City of New York approve

         16  that, and would like them to go ahead and move to at

         17  least get it on the floor and debate it.  So that we

         18  know who is for it, and who is against it.  This has

         19  gone on for many, many years.  The staff has pleaded

         20  with me not to try to change the law.  They're

         21  terrified of it, because it is very, very important

         22  in our watershed, and it is still important in the

         23  development in New York City, which we know is

         24  happening.

         25                 The real estate industry is very
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          2  smart, and builds one house at a time in Staten

          3  Island, so they never get caught by the 12.4.  And I

          4  think it's something that we're losing in Staten

          5  Island, today, in the development that we thought

          6  was protected.

          7                 It is very, very important that we

          8  push through on this, and make it very clear how

          9  many people expect it to be passed, so that this

         10  will be changed.  And I congratulate you for adding

         11  this to the recent legislation.  That is very good

         12  for saving both Jamaica Bay and our wetlands.  Thank

         13  you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you

         15  Jeannie.

         16                 Oh, I'd like to point out for the

         17  record, that Ellen Hartig, our next witness, is also

         18  testifying on behalf of New York City Audobon.

         19  Right?

         20                 MS. HARTIG: Yes.  Thank you  My name

         21  is Ellen Kracauer Hartig.  I am a wetlands

         22  consultant. I am a Professional Wetlands Scientist.

         23  And I'm here as a consultant and on behalf of New

         24  York City Audobon Society.

         25                 I have conducted wetlands
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          2  delineations in a number of neighboring state, in

          3  Pennsylvania, Connecticut, New Jersey. And I do that

          4  under the jurisdiction of laws that are regulated by

          5  both the Army Corps and the states in which I'm

          6  performing the delineation.

          7                 I've noted, many of the urban

          8  wetlands are already so much reduced in size from

          9  previous fill activity.  And those are the ones that

         10  are left without protection.  And are of course, of

         11  special interest to us in New York City.

         12                 A number of states have been in the

         13  forefront now, in enacting new legislation that

         14  would compensate for the recent reduction in federal

         15  oversight.  And many did not have their own

         16  legislation previously.  Proudly, New York State has

         17  had precious legislation.  In the 1970s, New York

         18  State was among the states leading the way in

         19  passing protection wetlands legislation, for

         20  example, for freshwater wetlands, with Article 24.

         21                 And what that State Legislation does

         22  is protect the buffer  --  has a buffer area, which

         23  the federal wetland regulations do not have

         24  jurisdiction over.  It's a crucial difference

         25  between State and federal legislation.  So, we've
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          2  had the 12.4 acres, and then only those get the

          3  buffer area of about 100 feet beyond the wetland

          4  boundary.

          5                 Currently, New York State is lagging

          6  now behind the other states, because of the size

          7  limitation.  And this is unfortunate, and we should

          8  again, be in the forefront.

          9                 To talk a moment on wetlands science.

         10    The extent of wetlands on site is usually

         11  determined by professional wetland scientists.  The

         12  tools we use are mapping, the maps that are

         13  available from the State, soil surveys, topographic

         14  maps.  But the scientist also goes on the site and

         15  examines the site's vegetation, soils, and

         16  hydrology.  I have here a bag with some vegetation

         17  from a site I collected at yesterday, in doing a

         18  delineation.  It includes some bog laurel, and some

         19  mountain laurel.  And I also have the soils book

         20  that I use to demonstrate  --  to determine whether

         21  soils on site are hydric, are inundated temporarily

         22  or permanently on the site.

         23                 I can show you some soil chips that

         24  we use for those delineations.   And a very colorful

         25  soil is usually upland soil that has oxidized
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          2  conditions in the soil.  And then the hydric soils

          3  are sort of the very washed out color, or very, very

          4  dark. And we use these tools to delineate the

          5  wetlands.

          6                 Wetlands are not static.  You do not

          7  have the same line over years and years.  The

          8  wetlands line can change over time. In New York

          9  State, with the regulations, the wetlands change in

         10  New York State with the way we map it.  It's set in

         11  stone.  That is not scientifically accurate.  So

         12  this is another way, if we can reduce it to an acre

         13  in size, and have the wetlands not mapped, not set

         14  in stone, but each time a development is proposed,

         15  then you go out and you do a delineation.  That will

         16  enhance the accuracy, and that I think is part of

         17  the current legislation.

         18                 I will just end by saying that again,

         19  the relevance to New York City wetlands is multiple.

         20    That for New York City, wetlands offer flood

         21  protection, provide habitat for birds, fish, and

         22  other wildlife, filter pollutants, absorb flood and

         23  storm waters, offer aesthetics, recreations, such as

         24  walking, photography, painting, canoeing, rowing,

         25  and fishing, and offer education and scientific
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          2  research.

          3                 The proposed legislation will improve

          4  water quality in the Upstate Watershed lands.

          5  Again, on behalf of New York City.

          6                 The Audobon Society thank you for

          7  your time.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          9  Thank you.  Thank you.  The panel has been terrific.

         10    I just got a little follow up with regard to Mr.

         11  Brash, I want to direct staff to the last two pages

         12  of Mr. Brash's testimony that he talks about other

         13  undertakings for the Committee.  I'd like to discuss

         14  these with staff after the hearing.

         15                 I want to thank you for your support,

         16  Mr. Brash, and for all the things you've done for

         17  Jamaica Bay, and for the wetlands around the City,

         18  and thank you for making these points, which will

         19  get duly considered by the staff and myself.  I

         20  appreciate that.

         21                 And Paul, thanks for the --  Paul

         22  likes to talk about geology when he comes here

         23  because he knows that I'm a geologist, and that's a

         24  great thing when witnesses come before me and like,

         25  talk shop.  Which is great.  Paul, you got us into
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          2  some trouble here now, because if you could work

          3  with staff, or work with Richard Colon's staff, I'd

          4  like to have a "whereas" clause in the Resolution

          5  that sort of sums up that scientific thesis that you

          6  kind of discussed regarding the importance of sort

          7  of like the micro- wetlands, and how they have such

          8  a big impact.  So we'll weave an extra "whereas"

          9  clause into the Resolution on that topic, because I

         10  think it's worth doing that.

         11                 Jeannie, and Ellen, thank you so much

         12  for your continuing advocacy on behalf of all of our

         13  wetlands- related activities, and for sending the

         14  message to Albany, which is exactly what we're going

         15  to do when we pass this Resolution.  And then once

         16  we pass it, people can wave it around and make hay

         17  with it, right? And so this is the dance we do.  So

         18  every little bit helps.  And we thank you all very

         19  much for your testimony before us today, and

         20  appreciate it.  Thank you.

         21                 And for the last panel, we have my

         22  good friend, Don Riepe, from the New York City

         23  Sierra Club.  Don is also the keeper of the Jamaica

         24  Bay.  Bay guardian, bay guardian.  I've got to get

         25  my terminology right.  And Robert Moore, who is the
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          2  Executive Director of Environmental Advocates of New

          3  York.  Mr. Moore, thank you so much for being here

          4  today.  We've been informed that Billy Garrett is

          5  on, I guess, still on his way.  If he comes, we'll

          6  put him on

          7                 Okay.  Don, we'll start with you.  We

          8  appreciate your being here today.  And everything

          9  that you do, day in and day out, for wetlands.  You

         10  work it every day.  In the fields.  On the water.

         11  And we appreciate that.

         12                 MR. RIEPE: Thank you Councilman

         13  Gennaro, and other Council Members for inviting me.

         14  Today, I'm representing the Atlantic Chapter of the

         15  Sierra Club, as well as the New York Chapter of the

         16  American Literal Society.

         17                 I'd like to read --

         18                 CHAIRMAN GENNARO: And if you'd just

         19  state your name for the record.

         20                 MR. RIEPE: Oh, Don Riepe.

         21                 The Sierra Club Atlantic Chapter

         22  strongly supports passage of Resolution Number 1078,

         23  in support of the New York State Clean Water

         24  Protection/Flood Protection Act. Protection of New

         25  York State's wetlands is critical to preserving New
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          2  York City's primary source of clean drinking water,

          3  as well as the State's economy and natural drainage

          4  systems and fish and wildlife.  Wetlands function to

          5  maintain healthy, natural drainage systems in

          6  several ways.  Wetlands tend to hold runoff from

          7  snow melt and rain events.  This helps prevent

          8  flooding, and allows the detained runoff to

          9  percolate into ground water to replenish aquifers.

         10  One acre of wetlands can hold back up to 1.5 million

         11  gallons of flood water.  Water held in wetlands can

         12  also be released into surrounding water bodies.  In

         13  this way, wetlands lower the height and velocity of

         14  flood water, as well as ensuring that water bodies

         15  maintain more stable flows of water.

         16                 In a related function, wetlands help

         17  maintain water quality and surface waters.

         18  Contaminants carried by storm waters settle out, or

         19  are filtered out of the water column by wetland

         20  plants.

         21                 Increasingly, municipalities are

         22  finding that preservation of wetlands can offset the

         23  need to develop costly storm water management

         24  infrastructure.  The Staten Island Blue Belt is a

         25  case in point.  In this project, New York City is
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          2  proceeding to acquire and preserve wetlands in

          3  Staten Island, to forestall the need to install

          4  sewers and treatment facilities to manage storm

          5  water.  This project is projected to save the City

          6  between $35 an $50 million.

          7                 Wetlands also provide important

          8  habitat for fish and wildlife.  These ecosystems

          9  have been identified among the world's most

         10  biologically productive, ranking with coral reefs

         11  and rain forests.  U.S. EPA identifies 95 percent of

         12  the commercially harvested fin and shell fish as

         13  dependent on wetlands  --  that's both fresh and

         14  salt  --  and approximately one half of North

         15  American birds species nest or feed in wetlands.

         16                 The question of regulation of

         17  wetlands is especially important for New York City,

         18  since the City relies on surface water derived from

         19  a 2,000 square mile watershed that encompasses a

         20  large number of local governments.  State regulation

         21  of wetlands is particularly crucial for New York

         22  City because, although New York City does regulate

         23  activities that impact wetlands in its watershed, it

         24  limits its jurisdiction to wetlands that are

         25  jurisdictional under State law.  New York State
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          2  regulates most activities, aside from agriculture,

          3  that impact wetlands or a 100 foot buffer area

          4  surrounding them.

          5                 Unfortunately, the State program is

          6  limited.  The State program only has jurisdiction

          7  over wetlands that are on the State freshwater

          8  wetland maps.  In addition, State law, for the most

          9  part, prevents mapping of all but the State's

         10  largest wetlands.  Wetlands can only be placed on

         11  the freshwater wetland maps if they are 12.4 acres

         12  or larger, or if they exhibit characteristics that

         13  make them wetlands of unusual local significance.

         14  The large size threshold and restrictive regulatory

         15  criteria defining wetlands of unusual local

         16  significance rule out State regulation of many of

         17  the State wetlands.

         18                 A study by the Sierra Club comparing

         19  maps prepared by the U.S. Division of Wildlife

         20  Service and the New York State freshwater wetland

         21  maps found that 94 percent of the State's wetlands

         22  were not on the State regulatory maps.  In effect,

         23  the current definition of wetlands, under State law,

         24  severely limits the ability of both New York City,

         25  and New York State to regulate activities that
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          2  threaten wetlands in the New York City watershed.

          3                 I'd like to just close with some

          4  recommendations if I could.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

          6                 MR. RIEPE: The Sierra Club recommends

          7  that New York City should expand its State

          8  Freshwater Wetland Protection Program to make it

          9  more comprehensive.  There is currently broadly

         10  supported legislation  --  that's A2048 and S2081

         11   --  to do this before the State Legislature.  The

         12  bill proposes to amend Article 24 of the New York

         13  State Environmental Conservation law, to lower the

         14  size threshold for regulation to one acre for all

         15  wetlands, to allow the DEC to protect wetlands

         16  smaller than an acre if justified, and remove the

         17  requirement that wetlands be on the State freshwater

         18  maps in order to be protected.

         19                 In 2005, the bill passed the State

         20  Assembly and made it to the floor of the State

         21  Senate.  The legislation would probably make New

         22  York's Freshwater Wetland Protection program

         23  comparable enough to the federal program to allow

         24  New York to take delegation of the federal program.

         25                 Due to the restrictive nature of the
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          2  current State law with respect to wetlands, it is

          3  not possible for the State to have a comprehensive

          4  State Freshwater Wetland Protection program without

          5  changing the law.

          6                 Expansion of New York's Freshwater

          7  Wetlands program would require increases in funding

          8  to expand the DEC's regulatory program.  To cover

          9  the cost of expanding the program, New York should

         10  reestablish a regulatory fee in association with the

         11  wetlands program.  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         13  Thank you Don, I appreciate it.

         14                 Mr. Moore, I want to thank you so

         15  much for coming down from Albany to be with us

         16  today.  We're very grateful for all that you and

         17  your great organization do on behalf of our State's

         18  environment.  And so we're very, very pleased to

         19  have you here with us today.

         20                 MR. MOORE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I look forward

         22  to your testimony, and state your name for the

         23  record and proceed with your good testimony.

         24                 MR. MOORE: My name is Robert Moore.

         25  I'm the Executive Director of Environmental
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          2  Advocates of New York, which has been your watchdog

          3  of State government in Albany for the past 36 years.

          4                 We appreciate the opportunity to come

          5  here and provide testimony to this Committee on the

          6  need for our State Legislature to fill a gaping

          7  loophole in New York wetlands protection laws.  And

          8  we appreciate this Committee's consideration of

          9  Resolution 1078, which we urge you to adopt.

         10                 New York's wetlands assets are

         11  particularly vulnerable.  Because the State, long

         12  ago, ceded much of its jurisdiction for protecting

         13  these areas to the federal government. And as you've

         14  heard in previous testimony, which I will try to not

         15  repeat, there have been some difficulties with how

         16  the federal government is enforcing our wetlands

         17  protections under Sections 404 of the Clean Water

         18  Act.

         19                 Under the Bush Administration, there

         20  has been guidance directed to the Army Corps of

         21  Engineers, and U.S. EPA, that severely restricts the

         22  jurisdiction of the federal government in protecting

         23  wetlands.  This has, as a result, exposed the

         24  loophole in our own State laws, that only allows

         25  wetlands that have been placed on the State wetlands
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          2  maps and exceed a size threshold of 12.4 acres to

          3  actually be regulated and controlled under State

          4  law.

          5                 This approach, as was mentioned

          6  previously, fails to protect over 90 percent of the

          7  wetland areas in the State of New York, mostly due

          8  to the incomplete nature of the State's own maps.

          9  For the 90 plus percent of the wetlands in New York

         10  State, we still rely upon federal agencies to

         11  regulate dredge and fill activities in wetlands

         12  under 12.4 acres.

         13                 Now, since the Army Corps and U.S.

         14  EPA have had their jurisdiction restricted through

         15  guidance, they are no longer exercising their

         16  authority under the Clean Water Act for those

         17  wetlands determined to be so- called "isolated"

         18  wetlands.  And in fact, in many cases, where the

         19  Army Corps is uncertain of whether a wetland is

         20  isolated or not, they are actually erring on the

         21  side of not enforcing the Clean Water Act.  That'

         22  why it's essential that New York strengthen its

         23  natural resources laws to better protect our State

         24  wetlands.

         25                 No other state in the Northeast uses
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          2  an arbitrary size threshold for a wetland, to

          3  restrict its authority to protect the public's

          4  natural resources in this way.  Legislation has been

          5  proposed, obviously, in the State Capitol in the

          6  form of Assembly Bill 2048, sponsored by Tom

          7  DiNapoli, and Senate Bill 2081, sponsored by Senator

          8  Carl Marsolino (phonetic), that would expand the

          9  State's jurisdiction to smaller wetland areas,

         10  regardless of whether they have been previously

         11  mapped by the Department of Conservation.

         12                 I would like to highlight for you the

         13  importance of the City Council's actions in

         14  supporting passage of Statewide legislation to fill

         15  this regulatory loophole.  This legislation that has

         16  been proposed in Albany has been kept from Governor

         17  Pataki's desk due to a  --  not because of a lack of

         18  popular support among our legislators.  This year,

         19  in the State Assembly, wetlands legislation passed

         20  very early in the session with overwhelming

         21  bipartisan support, by a vote of 115 to 28.  And in

         22  the Senate, environmental advocates this year

         23  documented that 31 State Senators, from both

         24  parties, 11 Republicans and 20 Democrats, were

         25  willing to be sponsors of identical legislation.
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          2  This level of support is very rare in the State

          3  Capitol.  And it represents a level of support that

          4  has only one sponsor, short of the 32 votes

          5  necessary to pass a bill in the State Senate.

          6                 Both these bills also enjoyed the

          7  endorsement of Governor Pataki, who proposed similar

          8  legislation not once, but twice, both in his budget

          9  address in the beginning of the session, and as a

         10  program bill later in the session.

         11                 So why is legislation failed to be

         12  enacted?  The problem is not necessary a lack of

         13  understanding of the science or policies.  The

         14  problem is that a small minority of State Senators

         15  have set their will against that of the majority of

         16  their colleagues.  And keeps important public policy

         17  such as this from being voted upon or even being

         18  debated.

         19                 I've attached to my testimony, a copy

         20  of the voters' guide, which is an annual publication

         21  published by our sister organization, EPL

         22  Environmental Advocates.  And inside there, you will

         23  find additional information on those members of the

         24  Legislature, the majority of whom support

         25  strengthening our wetlands laws, and by extension

                                                            53

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  support clean water/wildlife protection for the

          3  State of New York.

          4                 Protecting wetlands is absolutely

          5  critical for accomplishing these two goals, but it

          6  is also important here in New York City, not just as

          7  a matter of wetlands protection, I'm sorry, water

          8  quality protection, of flood prevention, and

          9  wildlife habitat preservation, this is also an issue

         10  about public health.  Given the fact that the City's

         11  drinking water largely comes from unfiltered sources

         12  in the Catskills, where wetlands provide the natural

         13  filtration that removes suspended solids, removes

         14  sediment, and removes nutrients like phosphorous,

         15  that can contaminate our drinking water supplies.

         16                 In closing, Environmental Advocates

         17  supports the adoption of Resolution Number 1078.

         18  And adoption of this Resolution by this Committee,

         19  and by the full Council is a powerful demonstration

         20  of the public support for wetlands protections, and

         21  a powerful demonstration of your support for the

         22  majority of Legislators in Albany who believe the

         23  State's wetlands laws must be strengthened.

         24                 I appreciate the opportunity to come

         25  here today and address this Committee.  Thank you
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          2  very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          4  Thank you Don. Thank you Mr. Moore.  And I'm already

          5  thinking ahead a step.  Once we pass this

          6  Resolution, I'm going to be looking to some of the

          7  witnesses, and this panel as well, to figure out  --

          8    so once we have the passed Resolution in hand, who

          9  do we get the best impact from that?  And how do we

         10  transmit it to Albany?  What do we do? And how can

         11  we sort of best capitalize on this gesture by the

         12  full Council?  And so, we'll be  --  whatever ideas

         13  along those lines -  I know you  -- I'm so grateful

         14  that you're here today, Mr. Moore, because you could

         15  advise us perhaps, in a special way, how we can take

         16  this little piece of paper that we're going to

         17  generate and do the most good with it.  Do you have

         18  any insights?

         19                 MR. MOORE: I think one of the most

         20  important things we can do, because of the problem

         21  we have in Albany is a political problem, rather

         22  than a lack of understanding of the necessity of

         23  taking these actions, is to first of all, publicize

         24  the Council's support of enacting stronger wetlands

         25  laws.  And also publicize the importance of strong
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          2  wetlands laws to protecting New York's water supply,

          3  not just from an environmental perspective, but from

          4  a public health perspective.  As well as from an

          5  economic perspective.

          6                 As we all know, New York's water

          7  supply enjoys a great economic benefit in the form

          8  of avoided costs of filtration, because of the

          9  natural purity that we are lucky to have in the

         10  Catskills.  And with the reservoirs that supply New

         11  York's drinking water.  So it would behoove, I

         12  think, all of us to help support this legislation by

         13  perhaps releasing a joint press statement, and

         14  holding a press conference later.  I think it's

         15  absolutely critical that we raise the visibility of

         16  this issue, and expose the real reason why this bill

         17  has not sent to Governor Pataki for his signature.

         18                 I'd also reach out, personally, to

         19  the members of the Assembly and the members of the

         20  Senate, who are identified in the voters' guide, and

         21  let them know that you truly stand behind them in

         22  the Legislature, and urge them to become much more

         23  vocal with leadership in the Senate, and in

         24  particular, to move this bill forward, for the sake

         25  of New York's environment, and for the sake of those

                                                            56

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  people who rely on New York City's drinking water

          3  supply.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That sounds

          5  good.  And --

          6                 MR. MOORE: I'd be happy to write the

          7  press release for you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, that's

          9  fine.  And if I have to go to Albany, or we do it

         10  here, or whatever, and so I'm also giving a lot of

         11  jobs to staff today.  So I want to direct staff to

         12  work with Mr. Moore and all the other good advocates

         13  in how we could coordinate in a productive way, to

         14  send the message that has to be sent.  Maybe we'll

         15  go to Jamaica Bay, Don.  Maybe we could all go

         16  there.  I always like going there.  I always like

         17  going there.

         18                 And so, thank you both for being with

         19  us today.  We appreciate your ongoing advocacy, and

         20  thanks for coming all the way down from Albany.

         21                 Okay, that brings to a conclusion, I

         22  guess the second part of the hearing.  And so we'll

         23  just take a two- minute recess, and then I'll be

         24  right back.  And then we'll start the Broadwater

         25  Project sort of section on the hearing.  Or segment
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          2  of the hearing.  So a two- minute recess, and then

          3  we'll resume.

          4                 A recess was taken.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.  Sorry for

          6  what turned out to be more than a two- minute

          7  recess.  And we're starting the third part of the

          8  hearing, in which we're going to talk about the

          9  Broadwater Project.  Here from Broadwater Energy,

         10  our next witness, John Hritcko, am I saying that

         11  right?  Who will speak on behalf of the Broadwater

         12  Project.  And -- Okay, I found what I think is your

         13  statement.  There are very few witnesses on this  --

         14    so there are only  -- Bob's not testifying?

         15  You're not testifying, Bob?  Okay. Fine.  Great.  So

         16  there's only two witnesses, and it's a complicated

         17  issue that we haven't heard about before, and so

         18  neither witnesses in this section of the hearing

         19  will be on the clock.

         20                 So, John, thank you for being here

         21  today.  It's what happens when you try to eat and

         22  Chair at the same time.  You really shouldn't do

         23  that.  I'd like to hear a little bit about

         24  Broadwater, and also with the Resolution on this

         25  project being put forward by the Council.  So state
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          2  your name for the record, and proceed with your

          3  testimony.  We'd be grateful to hear your statement.

          4                 MR. HRITCKO: Thank you very much

          5  Chairman Gennaro, and members of the Environmental

          6  Protection Committee.

          7                 My name is John Hritcko, Jr.  I'm

          8  Senior Vice President and Regional Project Director

          9  for Broadwater Energy. Thank you for this

         10  opportunity today to participate in this hearing on

         11  Resolution 1265, calling for the appropriate federal

         12  and State agencies, and the public, to provide all

         13  natural gas supply project, including the proposed

         14  Broadwater Project, a fair and full review.

         15                 Broadwater is a joint venture between

         16  TransCanada Corporation and Shell.  TransCanada is

         17  one of North America's largest natural gas pipeline

         18  companies, and transports the majority of Western

         19  Canadian gas to the U.S.  Shell is a global leader

         20  in liquified natural gas, referred to as LNG,

         21  operations, technology, including liquefaction,

         22  shipping, and regasification.

         23                 The New York City region is in need

         24  of large, new, dependable supplies of natural gas.

         25  The increasing price of natural gas, and the price
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          2  spikes that New York is increasingly experiencing,

          3  are symptomatics of that need.

          4                 Because of the relatively clean,

          5  efficient nature of natural gas, it's become the

          6  fuel of choice for generating electricity.  But the

          7  higher cost of natural gas leads to higher costs for

          8  electricity as well.  Broadwater is a proposed

          9  solution to bring large, dependable supply of

         10  natural gas directly into this region.

         11                 The ability to deliver natural gas

         12  directly into this region is particularly important,

         13  because New York is located at the end of an

         14  expensive network of natural gas pipelines that move

         15  gas from the Gulf Coast and Western Canada to the

         16  Northeast. These pipelines are full during times of

         17  greatest need, such as now, the winter heating

         18  season.  And any new natural gas will require more

         19  pipelines to be built.

         20                 Unfortunately, new pipelines will

         21  only provide flexibility to move gas where it is

         22  needed.  They do not add to the overall supply.

         23  Recent studies have shown that while the traditional

         24  supply sources of natural gas will continue to serve

         25  most of our future needs, they cannot keep pace with
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          2  the growing demand.  As a result, without the

          3  addition of new supplies from projects such as

          4  Broadwater, the price of natural gas will continue

          5  to rise, and volatility, the price spiking, will

          6  increase.

          7                 Broadwater is, of course, only part

          8  of the solution to the region's energy needs.

          9  Further development of pipeline capacity, and

         10  increasing emphasis on conservation measures, and

         11  the development of renewable resources such as wind

         12  and solar must be included.  But these new

         13  technologies will take years to develop, and New

         14  York City cannot wait another day to begin making

         15  choices that affect its future energy supplies.

         16                 The key benefits of the Broadwater

         17  Project include the fact that it is a large new

         18  supply of natural gas.  A billion cubic feet a day,

         19  or approximately one quarter to one third of the

         20  region's current average daily needs.  Enough to

         21  serve four million homes for a year.  And it would

         22  be delivered directly into this area.

         23                 New Yorkers would no longer be just

         24  another consumer at the end of the pipeline.  But

         25  will be first for this supply.  As such, our natural
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          2  gas and electric services will be more dependable,

          3  since we would no longer be at a disadvantage if

          4  something such as the Gulf Coast hurricanes affect

          5  our far- away supplies.

          6                 This new supply will reduce New York

          7  City's overall cost of energy, both electricity and

          8  gas, by about $330 million per year.  And more

          9  importantly, dampen the tendency for frequent price

         10  spikes.  By eventually replacing older, less

         11  efficient power generation that burns coal and fuel

         12  oil with highly efficient natural gas units  --

         13  it's called "repowering"  --  we would significantly

         14  reduce the emissions of NOx, SOx, CO2, and

         15  particulates in the air we breathe.

         16                 Finally, natural gas, cleaner and

         17  more efficient than other fossil fuels, will serve

         18  as the bridge until we develop new technologies such

         19  as hydrogen and renewables, that will meet our

         20  energy demands.

         21                 The Broadwater Project would bring

         22  natural gas to this region as liquified natural gas,

         23  called LNG.  When natural gas is cooled to minus 260

         24  degrees Fahrenheit, it changes from a gas to a

         25  liquid.  As a liquid, the gas condenses.  It
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          2  occupies one six hundredth of the space of a gas.

          3  It can be economically stored and transported over

          4  long distances.  LNG has been delivered safely and

          5  dependably throughout the world for over 40 years.

          6  Some countries, such as Japan and Korea, get nearly

          7  all their natural gas delivered as LNG.  Here in the

          8  U.S., utilities have used LNG as a way to store gas

          9  near consumers, so that they have sufficient

         10  supplies available in the coldest Winter days.

         11  ConEd and KeySpan operate LNG storage facilities in

         12  Brooklyn, Queens, and on Long Island to meet their

         13  operating needs.

         14                 Broadwater is a slightly different

         15  type of LNG facility.  Rather than being used for

         16  Winter peak days, it will bring a year- round source

         17  of natural gas to the region.  This source of

         18  natural gas would be from liquefaction plants

         19  located throughout the world where gas is being

         20  produced, but there are too few customers to use it.

         21    Places in the Atlantic Basin, such as Trinidad,

         22  Nigeria, and Norway, could sell natural gas to

         23  consumers in the U.S., by delivering LNG to the

         24  Broadwater terminal.  The LNG carriers would unload

         25  liquid to the Broadwater facility, where it would be
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          2  stored and warmed back into a gas, and delivered

          3  into existing pipeline systems serving the region.

          4                 The proposed Broadwater facility

          5  would consist of a floating storage regasification

          6  unit, called an FSRU, essentially, an LNG ship with

          7  regasification equipment to warm the LNG back into a

          8  gas so it could be delivered into pipelines serving

          9  the New York and Connecticut region.  The FSRU would

         10  be positioned approximately nine miles north of

         11  Wading River, New York, near the middle of the

         12  widest part of Long Island Sound.  Unlike a typical

         13  ship, the FSRU would not have a propulsion system,

         14  but instead, be held in place by a mooring tower.  A

         15  new, 22- mile long natural gas pipeline would

         16  connect the FSRU to the existing Iroquois pipeline

         17  that crosses the Sound between Connecticut and New

         18  York, thereby allowing natural gas from Broadwater

         19  to flow directly to consumers in both New York and

         20  Connecticut.

         21                 Broadwater has been engaged in a

         22  public review program called the NEPA Pre- file

         23  review process, in compliance with Federal Energy

         24  Regulatory Commission, or FERC, regulations.  We

         25  anticipate submitting our formal application for
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          2  approval of the proposed project by mid- January of

          3  2006, the middle of next month. Once the application

          4  is submitted, FERC will undertake an extensive

          5  review of the proposal, that includes developing an

          6  environmental impact statement.  Broadwater

          7  anticipates receiving a final decision from FERC

          8  before the end of 2006.

          9                 In addition to the FERC approval,

         10  Broadwater must obtain a host of permits and

         11  approvals from numerous other federal and State

         12  agencies.  If this extensive regulatory review

         13  process proceeds as planned, the New York City

         14  region would receive its first natural gas from

         15  Broadwater in late 2010 or 2011.

         16                 As Resolution 1265 states, in light

         17  of the important role that natural gas is projected

         18  to play in enhancing the reliability of energy

         19  sources, increasing the diversity of supply sources,

         20  reducing energy price volatility, and protecting

         21  environmental and public health in New York, it is

         22  imperative that all natural gas supply projects

         23  receive a full and fair review.

         24                 Broadwater is a natural gas supply

         25  project that could greatly improve the energy
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          2  picture of New York City, as well as Long Island and

          3  Connecticut region.  But only if it receives a fair

          4  and full review.  Informed decisions about New York

          5  City's energy future can only be made if the facts

          6  are known.

          7                 I thank you for this opportunity to

          8  present this to the Committee today, and look

          9  forward to any questions you have.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you John,

         11  for that presentation.  I welcome the opportunity to

         12  hear more about the specifics of the Broadwater

         13  Project.  But of course, the Resolution, while it

         14  does mention Broadwater, it has a broader reach as

         15  well, to any that we should give due consideration

         16  to all projects that may help us to be better

         17  situated with respect to our natural gas supply

         18  resources.

         19                 And in your statement, the last part

         20  of your statement, which gets to the crux of our

         21  Resolution, is that all such projects should get a

         22  fair and full review.  It must be fair. It must be

         23  full.  And informed decisions about the City's

         24  energy future can only be made if the facts are

         25  known.  And it seems, well, why would a legislative
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          2  body have to do a resolution which would call for

          3  governmental processes to kind of play themselves

          4  out, which, by statute, they have to do anyway.  But

          5  we all here, who partake in political discourse, and

          6  as we interact with the sort of like the public

          7  mind, as we do, we know what's important that there

          8  is often times, with all kinds of different

          9  projects, considerations and influences and factors,

         10  and pressures, that may or may not dissuade people

         11  in the public policy arena, or from the process

         12  itself, from having its full impact.  And then this

         13  is what we seek to preclude by stating for the

         14  record that it's a sense of this institution that

         15  this project, and other projects that could help us

         16  greatly with respect to our natural gas supply

         17  resources, should be given a full and fair review.

         18  This is, of course, not to pass judgement in any

         19  way, from this institution on the merits or demerits

         20  of Broadwater or any other project.  But simply to

         21  call for, as you state in your statement, for a

         22  fairness and fullness. And as this proposal winds

         23  its way through the various regulatory processes, we

         24  will take a very detailed and substantive look at

         25  that, and interact with the various regulators, and
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          2  weigh in as appropriate.

          3                 But in order to  -- and all we're

          4  really asking for through this resolution is for

          5  that opportunity to do exactly that. And so, this

          6  institution is not here to promote Broadwater, to

          7  cast dispersions on Broadwater, but simply for the

          8  process to take itself forward, and to have a full

          9  and fair review.

         10                 With that said, I do have a couple of

         11  questions regarding the specifics of the project

         12  that I just can't resist the opportunity to delve in

         13  a little bit.  And I grew up on Long Island.  I was

         14  educated at SUNY Stoneybrook, so I know the

         15  Northshore pretty well.  I lived in Sound Beach,

         16  that's not too far from Wading River.  And I noticed

         17  that the actual location of the facility will be 22

         18  miles, I guess east of the pipeline connection. So

         19  you'd have to run that 22- mile segment between the

         20  facility and the pipe.  And some might ask, well,

         21  wouldn't it have been cheaper to kind of build it a

         22  little closer to the pipe.  And sort of what factors

         23  went into consideration of the actual location of

         24  the facility?

         25                 MR. HRITCHKO: Right.  That's a very
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          2  good question, and of course, the closer it is to

          3  the pipe, the less expensive it is for us to install

          4  this facility.  However, our drothers would be to

          5  put it adjacent to the Iroquois pipeline system.

          6  But we had a very expensive list of criteria that

          7  had to be met in order to look for an appropriate

          8  site for this facility.  They included not only the

          9  obvious environmental considerations; socio-

         10  economic considerations; who is using the Sound;

         11  where the recreational boaters are; where the

         12  fishing, commercial and otherwise, are; cross- Sound

         13  ferry.  We also had to look at engineering data as

         14  to how close and how far you could actually build

         15  this facility.  And also, things such as engineer

         16  design conditions, such as the soil conditions on

         17  the bottom of the Sound had to be all detailed and

         18  looked at carefully, in order to find a suitable

         19  location for this facility.

         20                 I might also add, that we did look,

         21  in fact, on shore, because placing a facility of

         22  this nature on shore is considerably less costly

         23  than putting it off shore.  However, in this region,

         24  there just aren't very many locations that are

         25  suitable or suitably remote that wouldn't have a
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          2  major environmental impact, because the more

          3  sensitively environmental areas are closer to the

          4  shoreline.  So we chose to  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And probably you

          6  would also need a deep water port --

          7                 MR. HRITCKO: We need deep water and

          8  dredging, building of a pier, to the more sensitive

          9  near- shore areas.  All of which we viewed as a non-

         10  starter, particularly for this region. So, as such,

         11  we quickly came to the conclusion that putting it in

         12  the middle of the Sound, where we propose to locate

         13  it, actually has the smallest environmental

         14  footprint, and the best location from many different

         15  aspects.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.  It's

         17  almost like  -- it's difficult to have any

         18  discussion about any project that has such a large

         19  concentration of I guess, potentially volatile agent

         20  such as natural gas.  Everyone always thinks of

         21  terrorism, and having so many cubic feet of a

         22  certain substance that could be prone to attack or

         23  whatever.  What's kind of the various security risks

         24  and potential impacts of, God forbid, a successful

         25  terrorist strike on a facility like this, that would
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          2  be located on land versus one that's located several

          3  miles offshore?

          4                 MR. HRITCKO: Well, I think it gets

          5  into your original remarks about having a full and

          6  fair review.  Many things become overly hyped,

          7  overly sensitized.  And the facts need to be

          8  reviewed.  And in fact, natural gas and its

          9  characteristics are such that in the worst case

         10  situation, there's been a lot said about what would

         11  happen to this facility if in fact, the worst case,

         12  whether it be accidental or intentional, would

         13  occur, but its location, again, nine miles offshore,

         14  is its best attribute, because it's nowhere near  --

         15    the facility itself, which the impacts would be

         16  felt within, say, a mile, a mile and a half.

         17                 We've talked to many, many safety

         18  experts and security experts about this project,

         19  including those at Homeland Security for both New

         20  York and Connecticut.  We've spoken to the Police

         21  officials, Fire officials, and others.  And they all

         22  agree that, knowing the characteristics of LNG, and

         23  what it would do if it were under a worst- case

         24  situation.  And this project is simply does not rise

         25  to the level of a project that they're concerned
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          2  about from a terrorist perspective.  So much of what

          3  is being said about the project just simply doesn't

          4  wash, based on what the numerous experts on

          5  terrorism and safety and security have been

          6  concluding along with us.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And yes, I'd

          8  just like to recognize that we're joined by Council

          9  Member Domenic Recchia, another valued member of

         10  this Committee.

         11                 And it would also be fair to say, I

         12  think I can glean from the remark that you just

         13  made, that the potential impacts of the penetration

         14  of such a facility like this, were it located on

         15  land, would be much more significant to sort of the

         16  local populace, because of its proximate location to

         17  where they would be.  That would be correct to say.

         18                 MR. HRITCKO: Many of these facilities

         19  are located throughout the world, right in populated

         20  centers.  For example, Tokyo Bay has seven LNG

         21  receiving terminals in among the very densely

         22  populated area of the Tokyo Harbor.  They've been

         23  operating efficiently and safely for about 40 years

         24  now.

         25                 But it's the acceptance of the fact
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          2  that that facility would be there is really the key,

          3  not so much the nature. You could make virtually any

          4  facility as safe as need be for the conditions of

          5  the site.  But this being so far removed is a

          6  definite plus.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.  Have

          8  there been other facilities, floating facilities

          9  like this, that have been successfully configured

         10  and put into operation?  What sort of the history of

         11  this sort of prototype?

         12                 MR. HRITCKO: Floating technology has

         13  been around in the petroleum industry for years on

         14  the production oil.  We have not used it in LNG

         15  facilities until recently, because quite frankly, it

         16  was much easier to locate in many parts of the world

         17  where people have these facilities onshore.

         18  However, given the fact that there are fewer of

         19  those locations available, particularly in the

         20  United States, and in the Northeast, and in

         21  California, we're looking toward that technology

         22  that we've used dependably for years as a basis for

         23  this.

         24                 There's  --  I'll point out  --  the

         25  most recent LNG facility to become operational in
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          2  the United States is one that's offshore of

          3  Louisiana, that is a floater.  It's a slightly

          4  different technology from what Broadwater is

          5  proposing, but it's a floating facility, and it's

          6  delivering gas through a pipeline system from that

          7  facility.  So there are others proposed very much

          8  like this.

          9                 So it's something that's being looked

         10  to because of the fact that it's more and more

         11  difficult to site these facilities onshore.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: How did that

         13  facility fair during the recent hurricanes?

         14                 MR. HRITCKO: Actually, quite well.

         15  The facility, the ship moved off, that brings the

         16  LNG to it, and warms it back into a gas, the

         17  connecting system, the buoy system that delivers the

         18  gas into, was lowered below the surface, and it

         19  weathered the storm fine, so it's fully operational

         20  today.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.  Well, I

         22  was glad to have this opportunity to ask some

         23  questions about the specifics of the Broadwater

         24  Project, even though the resolution is in the pitch,

         25  a little more broad in scope, we're only asking that
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          2  the various regulators have the opportunity to make,

          3  as we said, fair and full assessment of this, or

          4  other projects that could help us with regard to our

          5  natural gas situation.  Certainly, I, as a natural

          6  gas customer, myself in heating my own home, are

          7  very aware of the increased cost of natural gas.

          8  And anything that we could do to reap some of the

          9  environmental benefits of using more natural gas,

         10  and thereby reducing production of some of the

         11  criteria pollutants would be a good thing, if we

         12  could bring that to pass.

         13                 The pronunciation of your last name,

         14  John?

         15                 MR. HRITCKO: It's Hritcko.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Hritcko.

         17                 MR. HRITCKO: Right.  You did very

         18  well with that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.  Well, Mr.

         20  Hritcko, thank you so much for being with us today

         21  on short notice, and we wish you well with the

         22  regulators as you pursue this project.  Thank you,

         23  thank you.  And I'm sure we'll be hearing more from

         24  you as this project makes its way through the

         25  process.  Thank you sir.
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          2                 MR. HRITCKO: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Next witness,

          4  final witness, Annie Wilson, of the Sierra Club

          5  Atlantic Chapter.  Good afternoon. Good afternoon.

          6                 I'll just state for the record, that

          7  also we're joined in the audience by Mr. Bob

          8  Muldoon, a frequent testifier before this Committee.

          9  We appreciate Bob having you in the room, and all

         10  that Sierra Club has always meant to New York area

         11  environment, and how much it means now, and how much

         12  it always will mean.  And so, Ms. Wilson, thank you

         13  so much for being here today. Do you have a

         14  statement Anne?  Okay, that's fine.  Okay.  Okay.

         15  And so, you know what we'll do?  We'll just ask you

         16  to turn your microphone on by turning the light off,

         17  the red light should be off.  We ask you to state

         18  your name for the record, talk very close to the

         19  microphone, and give us your views.

         20                 MS. WILSON: Good afternoon.  I'm

         21  Annie Wilson, with the Sierra Club.  I'm the Chair

         22  of the Energy Committee of the Atlantic Chapter.

         23  Thanks for giving me the opportunity today to name

         24  some comments regarding the Reso. 1265.

         25                 Well, at a first glance, I'm
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          2  perplexed.  I would like to comment first on the

          3  language, and then bring in some formal discussion

          4  on the LNG itself.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Absolutely.  You

          6  should do whatever you want to do.

          7                 MS. WILSON: Okay.  We'll do it that

          8  way.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I mean, because

         10  actually the most germane testimony that any witness

         11  could ever provide is if it's a legislative hearing,

         12  is to comment directly on the language in there.  I

         13  mean, that is  --  some people have philosophy and

         14  boilerplate and whatever, but the most germane

         15  testimony we could possibly have is when this

         16  language dot, dot dot.  I think this  -- that's

         17  always the best.

         18                 MS. WILSON: So I will go through the

         19  Resolution.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         21                 MS. WILSON: Whereas, in the first

         22  paragraph, it names insuring the reliability,

         23  promoting economic growth, and the need for an

         24  additional 2,600 megawatts of new capacity of New

         25  York City, come 2008, which, as we know, is named in
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          2  the Mayor's Task Force.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

          4                 MS. WILSON: My concern with that

          5  particular language is it doesn't name the diversity

          6  of options that we could have in providing those

          7  2,600 megawatts.  We have not named here, or it has

          8  not been named, that we have all kinds of

          9  conservation technologies, consumer access to the

         10  grid, new technologies, new building codes that are

         11  a lot of mechanisms that we could explore to fulfill

         12  that so- called requirement of the 2,600 megawatts

         13  come 2008.  Which, I think, could be named here as a

         14  part of a panoply of options.  If that's the goal,

         15  to provide  --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And I would

         17  encourage anyone, for any of our resolutions, or

         18  bills, anyone who has specific language

         19  recommendations, whether they be word- specific, or

         20  just general, we'd be happy to have those.  You can

         21  submit it to us for consideration.  Certainly, your

         22  verbal testimony it would help in that area as well.

         23    We have Richard, from the staff of the Committee,

         24  who is taking notes as well on your verbal

         25  testimony. But anything you wish to submit to us in
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          2  writing regarding any aspect of the resolution, we'd

          3  be more than happy to consider it.

          4                 MS. WILSON: Okay.  So I would just,

          5  as a summary, I suggest that this requirement could

          6  be met with a diversity of options which should be

          7  named in that first paragraph.  I think.

          8                 And regarding the last paragraph, on

          9  the first page, back to the increased diversity of

         10  supply sources and reduced price volatility, as

         11  naming gas as the only option, once again, it could

         12  name the conservation, new technologies, and access

         13  to the grid, and same aspects that should have been,

         14  and could be delivered as options in reaching the

         15  2,600 megawatts.

         16                 I also, in the last paragraph,

         17  calling upon the appropriate federal and State

         18  agencies.  My question is, regarding the National

         19  Energy Bill that was passed on August 8th, and the

         20  provision for FERC to override State and local regs,

         21  for liquid natural gas facilities, have you done any

         22  research regarding what the jurisdiction is now,

         23  given that that is the new Energy Bill, regarding

         24  the implementation of the LNG?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, I mean, I
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          2  think it would be an imposition of this institution,

          3  and certainly of that the State regulators, I'm not

          4  in favor of interstate regulators being overridden,

          5  and if the federal government is  --   I think by

          6  calling for the State and the general public to have

          7  a role in any consideration of this or any facility

          8  like it, I mean, I think what we're getting across

          9  by that is that we value sort of our State input,

         10  and the input of local citizenry and the robust

         11  discussion of any project.  And so, I'm not  --  I

         12  don't control what the federal government does, but

         13  by doing a  --  by putting forward a resolution that

         14  explicitly calls for a robust consideration and

         15  debate by the State regulators and like the local

         16  citizenry, I mean, that is making a case for we

         17  would not want the federal government override, like

         18  the local citizenry or our State government in

         19  consideration of this kind of facility.

         20            Beyond that, I can't really tell the

         21  federal government what to do.

         22                 MS. WILSON: Okay.  And then, in the

         23  testimony by the Senior Vice President of the LNG

         24  corporation, he had named that they had hoped to

         25  have the approvals come mid- January.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pardon?

          3                 MS. WILSON: He had named that they

          4  would hope to have the approvals come January, which

          5  is about a month from now. So I'm just curious to

          6  know what regulations and what  -- I'm almost asking

          7  him the question.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No.  You can't

          9  do that.

         10                 MS. WILSON: Okay, I won't.  Okay

         11  that's just my question regarding that testimony

         12  that  --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I didn't get

         14  that from his statement, and yes, I didn't get that

         15  from his statement.  That would have peaked my

         16  interest.  No, there's no way that this is going to

         17  be decided in the next  --  okay.  They're reading

         18  from John's statement.  It said, "We anticipate

         19  submitting our formal application for approval of

         20  the proposed project by mid- January". So that looks

         21  like the submission date.  It says, "Once the

         22  application is submitted, FERC will undertake an

         23  extensive review of the proposal, that includes

         24  developing an EIS, Broadwater anticipates receiving

         25  a final decision from FERC before the end of 2006."
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          2   "And in addition to FERC approval, ...must obtain a

          3  host of approvals from numerous other federal and

          4  State regulatory agencies"  and then, the timetable

          5  says that if all that happens New York City could

          6  get gas from Broadwater by late 2010 or 2011. So,

          7  that's what it says.

          8                 MS. WILSON: Okay.  Thanks for the

          9  clarification.

         10                 Now, I also would want to bring to

         11  the record that there are at least 50 elected

         12  officials in Long Island that oppose this project.

         13  Including Senator Hilary Clinton and Charles

         14  Schumer.  And I have a few  --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Have they

         16  formally opposed it?

         17                 MS. WILSON: Yes.  And there are a

         18  list of the elected officials the stopbroadwater.org

         19  website.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What's that?

         21                 MS. WILSON: Stopbroadwater.org

         22  website, which is for the coalition of Long Island

         23  residents opposing this development offshore.

         24                 And there's a lot of documents in all

         25  the media, and it's a very good resource  --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          3                 MS. WILSON: The coalition put

          4  together.

          5                 So, I guess I would want to add over

          6  everything I've said, overall, I'm thinking about

          7  cost benefit analysis, are there any studies showing

          8  what the costs or subsidies for this type of project

          9  could be versus a similar investment of those monies

         10  in diversification of fuel supply, renewable energy,

         11  technologies, conservation, and so forth.  That's

         12  basically where we need to go in the future, given

         13  that this won't be up and running until 2010, 2011.

         14  What can we do now to expedite options  --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Ordinarily, when

         16  people present testimony it's like not in the form

         17  of questions.  So it just, to the extent that there

         18  are not studies, or there are studies that show X or

         19  Y or Z, you know, that's what we're looking for in

         20  the way of testimony that bears directly on --

         21                 MS. WILSON: Well, I would support

         22  that the Environmental Protection Committee

         23  commission studies looking at the options that we

         24  have in the City, along with maybe, the EDC. There

         25  doesn't seem to have been a detailed review of our
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          2  options with the Mayor's Task Force report, as an

          3  outcome of that report. And there haven't been any

          4  recommendations for implementation. There hasn't

          5  been any lobbying at the Public Service Commission

          6  to access net metering for the residential consumers

          7  to encourage the development of alternative energy

          8  within the City of New York.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, we have a

         10   --  as you know, we have a  --  we've done a host

         11  of energy efficiency bills and we're doing more.  We

         12  don't really control what the EDC does, but I think,

         13  certainly this Committee, and this Council is sort

         14  of pushing the envelope in terms of energy

         15  efficiency with our Green Buildings legislation, all

         16  the other stuff that we've done, and ultimately,

         17  which is why I kind of stated it at the outset, it

         18  seems that some are sort of confusing and in a

         19  discussion of Broadwater, or any other project, I

         20  mean, I have no problem with legions of people

         21  opposing it, supporting it, that project, any other

         22  project.  But what I do call for, and what I do

         23  believe in is that any comprehensive examination of

         24  this or any other project should be on the merits,

         25  on the science, and that's really all we're calling
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          2  for, and I'm in no way tipping my hand to anyone as

          3  to what my own personal position on Broadwater may

          4  be.  I don't sit here today as a proponent or a

          5  detractor of Broadwater, but you know, we here in

          6  the Council, I think through this resolution, are

          7  seeking to support a full and robust fact- based

          8  process that could lead, like the local citizenry

          9  and State and federal regulators to a conclusion

         10  that hopefully, will be in the main, based on the

         11  facts and merits of the proposal, and not on other

         12  considerations.

         13                 MS. WILSON: Well, as closing

         14  comments, I hope that the City Council will

         15  participate in the process as an intervener in this

         16  matter, and that the City Council will support and

         17  encourage a diversity of options as part of its

         18  participation within this comment period as a reply

         19  to whatever will be published in January.

         20                 Thank you very much for this

         21  opportunity to be here today.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well put.  Well

         23  put.  Ms. Wilson, thank you so much for being here

         24  today.  And I look forward to continuing colloquy on

         25  this important issue.
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          2                 MS. WILSON: All right.  Thanks again.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: With no one else

          4  wishing to be heard, this hearing is adjourned.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 12:30 p.m.)
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